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¶ Affect the actual use of the property  
 

¶ Regulate a propertyõs paint color 
 

¶ Regulate a propertyõs interior 
 

¶ Apply to property outside the Covington or North Covington locally-designated 
districts.  

¶ Assist the Covington Historic Preservation Commission in reviewing additions, 
alterations, and new construction proposals within the Covington and North 
Covington local historic districts 
 

¶ Guide property owners and developers in maintaining and rehabilitating historic 
structures in a way that does not compromise the buildingsõ historic integrity 
 

¶ Provide architects, developers, and contractors with information to assist with 
the design of new construction and additions that will complement the historic 
districtsõ existing built environment 
 

¶ Provide Covington with continuity, stability, and predictability as to how the 
local historic districts will grow and change. 
 

¶ Promote a sense of unity and pride in Covingtonõs neighborhood and 
commercial districts 

First United Methodist Church. 
Covington Historic District  
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The National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (NHPA) established the federal governmentõs role in the preservation of Americaõs historic resources.  
The Act created the National Register of Historic Places, which recognizes structures and sites as historically and culturally significant, and serves as the 
initial requirement for property owners applying for Federal Rehabilitation Tax Credits.  The Act also gives states the authority to establish State Historic 
Preservation Offices (SHPOs), and encouraged preservation initiatives within state and local governments.  

The Georgia Historic Preservation Act is the statewide legal authority enabling preservation in Georgiaõs municipalities.  The Act gives local governments the 
authority to pass a Historic Preservation ordinance and establish a Historic Preservation Commission that can: 
 
¶ Review and designate a historic property or district within its locality 

 
¶ Survey areas of historic significance  

 
¶ Notify property owners of the historic properties survey 

 
¶ Hold public hearings relating to the proposed designation of local historic districts 

 
¶ Accept and review Applications for Certificates of Appropriateness (COAs) with the authority to approve, reject, or approve with conditions 

 
¶ Conduct an educational program on historic properties located within its historic preservation jurisdiction 

 
¶ Seek federal and state funds for preservation initiatives 

 
¶ Submit a list of historic properties and districts to the Historic Preservation Division (HPD) of the Georgia Department of Natural Resources for their 

proposed inclusion on the National Register 
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In 1980, amendments to the National Historic Preservation Act established the Certified Local Government (CLG) program, which allows a local 
government to apply for preservation funding. In particular, CLG status qualifies local governments for specific grants from the Georgia Historic 
Preservation Division. Eligibility for the CLG program requires that local governments (1) establish a historic preservation commission that conducts reviews, 
(2) enforce state and local preservation ordinances, and (3) maintain a historic properties survey.   
 
Covington was designated as a Certified Local Government  in 1999.  For more information, please refer to the Historic Preservation Divisionõs fact sheet, 
òCertified Local Government Program: Preservation through Local Planningó in the appendix.   

Historic Covington Womanõs Club. 
Covington Historic District  
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In 1999, the City of Covington decided òthat the historical, cultural and aesthetic heritage of the city is among its most valued and important assets and that 
the preservation of this heritage is essential to the promotion of the health, prosperity and general welfare of the people.ó  To protect these assets, the city 
passed the Historic Preservation Ordinance, which was formally adopted in 2000.  This ordinance led to the creation of Covingtonõs Historic Preservation 
Commission, which is tasked with designating and protecting the historic character of Covington.  The ordinance grants the commission the power to review 
all proposed material changes to the exterior of a structure within a locally-designated historic district.  Such changes can only be made once the commission 
issues a Certificate of Appropriateness to the property owner.  For further information, please refer to the Certificate of Appropriateness section on page 15. 

1140 Stallings Street. 
Covington Historic District  
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The city of Covington is located on land that belonged to the 
Creek Indian Nation until January of 1821, when the Treaty 
of Indian Springs ceded the land from the Creeks to the 
United States. Late in 1821, a land lottery was held awarding 
Joab Crutchfield a 202 ½ acre land lot, number 254, in the 
Ninth District. Crutchfield sold the property to Leonard 
Fretwell in January of 1822, and on April 15, the Justices of 
the Inferior Court selected the Fretwell property for the seat 
of the Newton County government. The place was named 
Newtonsborough, and established the town limits as one mile 
in all directions from the future location of the courthouse. 
The designation of Newtonsborough was short-lived as the 
name was changed to Covington when the city was 
incorporated on December 8, 1822. The town was named for 
Leonard Covington, a hero of the War of 1812.   
  
Covington had at least four stagecoach lines passing through 
the city, one of which crossed the state from Augusta to 
Atlanta.  This route was to be followed very closely by the 
line of the Georgia Railroad when it reached Covington in 
1844. Greek Revival, as seen here to the right, was a popular 
architectural style of this period, therefore many of 
Covingtonõs first residential structures were constructed in 
this style.  

The oldest house still standing in Covington, òSwanscombeó, was the first 
clapboard house and the first frame house in Covington.  It was built in 1828 by 

Cary Wood, one of the first settlers.  
Covington Historic District  
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One of the earliest railroads to organize in this part of Georgia was founded by Newton County residents. The rapid commercial growth of Covingtonõs 

business district during the 1850s was due in large part to the presence of the railroad that gave farmers and plantation owners the ability to transport their 

goods to market quickly and inexpensively.  

In 1864, the Civil War came to Covington as General Sherman and his army marched to the sea. The railroad, along with a new hospital capable of caring for 

thousands of soldiers, made Covington a viable military target. The rails were destroyed and the hospital burned, but fortunately most of the residences were 

spared.  A number are still standing today.  

Covingtonõs antebellum residential development was mainly to the east and south of downtown, primarily along the road to Madison, which is now Floyd 

Street, and down Monticello Road.  The fire of 1883 destroyed seven buildings in the square; this tragedy was a catalyst that spurred new economic 

development. One of these buildings was the Newton County Courthouse.  Store owners, as well as the county commission, moved quickly to rebuild the 

square and erected a new Second Empire style courthouse in 1885.  The 1880s were a very important decade for Covington, particularly for the physical 

development of the commercial district.  The downtown business district is characterized by its high  number of Victorian styled commercial buildings, which 

were popular at the turn of the century.  

The town continued to prosper and grow with the founding of Porterdale Mills in 1890, and Covington Mills in 1901, which proved to be significant factors in 

the economic development of Covington and Newton County. The mills operated successfully until the 1960s, when they eventually closed.   With these new 

industries, Covingtonõs residential development expanded into what is now called North Covington.  Many of the workersõ homes are still present in the area.  

  

The Covington and Oxford Street 
Railroad, completed in 1888, provided 
mule-drawn street car transportation 
between downtown Covington and 

the Georgia Railroad Depot. 
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The Newton County Courthouse 
as viewed from the Square. 
Covington Historic District  

 
In the first half of the 20th century, the town paved the sidewalks and the streets, thus spurring an increase in residential development of homes in 

North Covington.  Victorian architecture, especially the Queen Anne style, was popular in this period and many of the residences still remain, today. 

In 1952, the community experienced a major change when U.S. Highway 278 was constructed just south of the Georgia Railroad.  This highway 

divided the northern half of the city from the southern half.  Next, was the construction of Interstate 20, which provided industry access to a major 

transportation corridor and a connection to Atlanta.   

Covington has been featured in television shows and movies and because of this has been appropriately nicknamed òHollywood of the South.ó 

Some of the movies and television shows that have been filmed in Covington include:  Dukes of Hazzard, In the Heat of the Night, My Cousin Vinny, 

Sweet Home Alabama, Iõll Fly Away, Remember the Titans, and The Vampire Diaries.  Strong economic growth and prosperity has continued in Covington 

during recent years, as a significant corporate presence continues to increase. 

The city and the county have retained the small town and rural atmosphere of its beginnings, and an abundance of historic treasures can be found. 

The downtown business district is alive and vibrant, as evidenced by the thriving merchants and the groups of people seen frequenting the various 

places of business.  
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The nine Covington Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) members are appointed from the community by the Mayor and the City Council, and each 
member serves a term of three years. 

The HPC is responsible for protecting the architectural integrity of the historic districts through the review of proposed repairs, alterations, additions, or 
new construction.  An application for a Certificate of Appropriateness must be made when property owners are considering substantial alterations to their 
property.  Commission members will then review the applications to determine if proposed changes are consistent with the Secretary of the Interiorõs 
Standards for Rehabilitation and also consistent with locally adopted design guidelines. 

The HPC can seek funds for historic preservation from local, state, federal, and private sources.  Although the commission is tasked with a variety of 
duties, it considers the ongoing review of buildings, landscapes, structures, sites, and works of art for designation and listing on the National Register of 
Historic Places to be one of its chief duties. 

In order to protect the defining character of its historic districts, Covingtonõs Historic Preservation Ordinance requires that a Certificate of 
Appropriateness (COA) be obtained for any material changes to the exterior architectural features of any structure, site, or work of art within a historic 
district.  Material changes are defined as follows: 

¶ A reconstruction or alteration of the size, shape, or facade of a historic property, including relocation of any doors or windows, or removal or 
alteration of any architectural features, details, or elements, including the roof 

¶ Demolition of a historic property 
¶ Commencement of excavation 
¶ A change in the location or size of advertising on historic property visible from the public right-of-way 
¶ The erection, alteration, restoration, or removal of any building or other structure within a designated historic district, including walls, fences, steps, 

and pavements, or other appurtenant features of a building or structure, except exterior paint alterations 
 


